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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

BOB JOHNSON, on behdf of himsdf and dl others

similarly situated, © Civil Action No.
Plaintiff,
Vs © CLASSACTION COMPLAINT
" FOR VIOLATION OF
PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP, INC., * FEDERAL SECURITIESLAWS

ERNST & YOUNG, LLP, JAMESE. ROHR, and
ROBERT L. HAUNSCHILD,

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Defendants.

Paintiff, Bob Johnson, resding at 901 Parkes Run Lane, Villanova, PA 19085, individualy and
on behdf of dl other persons smilarly stuated, by his undersgned attorneys, dleges the following
based upon persona knowledge asto himsdf and his own acts, and information and belief asto dl
other matters, based upon, inter alia, the investigation conducted by and through his attorneys, which
included, among other things, areview of the public documents and announcements made by the
defendants, Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") filings, and press releases regarding PNC

Financid Services Group, Inc. ("PNC" or the "Company"), and plaintiff believes that substantia



evidentiary support will exigt for the alegations set forth herein after a reasonable opportunity for
discovery.

NATURE OF THE ACTION

1. Thisisaclass action brought by plaintiff on behdf of himsdlf and a Class consisting of
al other persons who purchased PNC common stock during the period from July 19, 2001 through
and including January 29, 2002 (the "Class Period"), to recover damages caused by the defendant’s
violation of federd securitieslaws. During the Class Period, the defendants issued and/or faled to
correct false and mideading financial statements and press releases concerning the Company's publicly
reported revenues and earnings directed to the investing public.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. The clams aleged herein arise under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. 88 78j(b) and 78t(a), and Rule 10b-5, 17
C.F.R. 8§ 240.10b-5 promulgated thereunder.

3. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to Section 27
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), 15 U.S.C. 878aaand 28 U.S.C. §
1331.

4, Venueis proper in this Judicia Digtrict pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act and
28 U.S.C. 81391(b). Many of the acts and transactions aleged herein, including the preparation and
dissemination to the investing public of false and mideading information, occurred in subgtantid part in
this Judicid Digrict. Moreover, the Company’ s corporate headquarters are located in this Judicid
Didrict.

5. In connection with the acts, transactions and conduct alleged herein, defendants,



directly and indirectly, used the means and instrumentdities of interstate commerce, including the United
States mails, interstate telephone communications and the facilities of the nationd securities exchanges.

THE PARTIES

6. Paintiff, Bob Johnson, purchased shares of PNC common stock as set forth in the
accompanying Certification of Named Plaintiff.

7. Defendant PNC is incorporated in the Commonwedlth of Pennsylvaniaand maintainsits
corporate headquarters at One PNC Plaza, 249 Fifth Avenue, Pittsburgh, PA 15222, PNC isabank
holding company and afinancid holding company. The Company is a diversfied financid services
company operating community banking, corporate banking, real etate finance, asset-based lending,
wed th management, asset management and globa fund services businesses. The Company provides
certain products and services nationdly and othersin PNC's primary geographic marketsin
Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Delaware, Ohio and Kentucky. The Company aso provides certain
products and services internationaly. As of January 28, 2002, there were approximately 283,000,000
shares of PNC common stock issued and outstanding. During the Class Period, PNC common stock
was actively traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NY SE”) under the ticker symbol “PNC.”

8. Defendant Ernst & Young, LLP (“E&Y™”) isincorporated in the State of New Y ork
and maintains corporate headquarters at 787 7" Avenue, New Y ork, New York 10019-6085. E&Y
describes itsdlf asaglobal leader in professond services that helps companiesin businesses across dl
industries, from emerging growth companiesto globa powerhouses, identify and capitaize on busness
opportunities. With 84,000 employees in more than 130 countries worldwide E&Y performs services
ranging from audit, tax, corporate finance, transactions, online security, enterprise risk management, the

vauation of intangibles, and other critical business-performanceissues. At dl rdlevant times herein



E&Y served as both an auditor and consultant for Defendant PNC as well as a consultant for American
International Group (*AlG”) whose transactions with PNC are the subject of this complaint.

9. Defendant James E. Rohr (*Rohr”) was the Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of PNC, at dl relevant times herein. As such, Rohr was responsible for overseeing
all aspects of PNC' s operations and on numerous occas ons made public statements on the Company’s
behdf regarding PNC' sfinancia condition and future prospects.

10. Defendant Robert L. Haunschild (*Haunschild”) was the Senior Vice Presdent and
Chief Financid Officer of PNC at dl rdevant times herein. As such, Haunschild was responsible for
the Company’ sfinancid , treasury and accounting functions. Haunschild signed PNC's Form 10-Q for
the second and third quarter of 2001.

11. Defendants Rohr and Haunschild are collectively referred to heresfter asthe
“Individud Defendants”

12. By reason of their positions with the Company, the Individual Defendants had access to
internd Company documents, reports and other information, including the adverse non-public
information concerning the Company's services, financia condition and future prospects, and attended
management and/or board of directors meetings. Asaresult of the foregoing, they were responsible for
the truthfulness and accuracy of the Company's public reports, SEC filings and press rel eases described
herein.

13. PNC, and the Individud Defendants as officers and directors of a publicly-held
company, had a duty to promptly disseminate truthful and accurate information with respect to PNC
and to promptly correct any public statements issued by or on behalf of the Company which had

become fase or mideading.



14. E&Y asauditor and consultant for Defendant PNC, who signed off on PNC's financia
results and gpproved of PNC' s transactions with AIG which are in question here, had aduty to
promptly disseminate truthful and accurate information and opinions with respect to PNC and to
promptly correct any public statements issued by or on behalf of the Company which had become false
or mideading or to correct any opinions given to the company in its role as auditor or consultant.

15. Each of the defendants knew or recklesdy disregarded that the false and/or mideading
gatements and omissions complained of herein would adversdly affect the integrity of the market for the
Company's stock and would cause the price of the Company's common stock to become artificially
inflated. Each of the defendants acted knowingly or in such areckless manner asto conditute a fraud
and decalt upon plaintiff and the other members of the Class.

16. Defendants are lidble, jointly and severaly, as direct participants in and co-conspirators
of, the wrongs complained of herein.

CLASSACTION ALLEGATIONS

17. Paintiff brings this action as a class action pursuant to Federd Rules of Civil Procedure
23(a) and (b)(3) on behaf of aclass (the “Class’) congisting of dl persons who purchased PNC
common stock during the Class Period, a period previoudy defined as from July 19, 2001 through
January 29, 2002, inclusive (the "Class Period"). Excluded are the defendants, any entity in which the
defendants have a controlling interest or is a parent or subsidiary of or is controlled by the Company,
and the officers, directors, employees, affiliates, lega representatives, heirs, predecessors, successors
and assigns of the defendants.

18.  Themembers of the Class are SO numerous that joinder of al membersisimpracticable.

While the exact number of Class membersis unknown to plaintiff at thistime and can only be



ascertained through appropriate discovery, plaintiff believesthere are, a aminimum, thousands of
members of the Class who traded during the Class Period. The Company had approximately 280
million shares of its common stock outstanding as of January 28, 2002.

19.  Common questions of law and fact exist asto dl members of the Class and
predominate over any questions affecting solely individua members of the Class. Among the questions

of law and fact common to the Class are:

i) whether the federa securities laws were violated by
defendants acts as dleged herein;

i) whether the Company issued false and mideading financid
statements during the Class Period,;

iif) whether defendants acted knowingly or recklesdy in issuing
fadse and mideading financid datements;

iv) whether the market prices of the Company's securities during
the Class Period were atificidly inflated because of the
defendants conduct complained of herein; and

V) whether the members of the Class have sustained damages and,
if S0, what is the proper measure of damages.

20. Haintiff’sdamsaretypica of the dams of the members of the Class as plaintiff and the
other members of the Class each sustained damages arising out of the defendants wrongful conduct in

violation of federd law as complained of herein.

21. Paintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the Class and
has retained counsdl competent and experienced in class actions and securitieslitigation. Plaintiff hasno
interests antagonigtic to or in conflict with those of the Class.

22. A dassactionissuperior to other available methods for the fair and efficient

adjudication of the controversy since joinder of al members of the Classisimpracticable. Furthermore,



because the damages suffered by the individua Class members may be rdatively smdl, the expense and
burden of individud litigation make it impossible for the Class membersindividualy to redress the
wrongs done to them. Plaintiff anticipates no unusud difficulties in the management of thisaction asa
classaction.

23. Raintiff will rey, in part, upon the presumption of reliance established by the fraud-on-

the-market doctrine in that:

i) defendants made public misrepresentations or failed to disclose materid facts
during the Class Period;

i) such omissons and misrepresentations were materid,;
iif) the securities of the Company traded in an efficient market;

iv) the misrepresentations and omissions aleged would tend to induce a reasonable
investor to migudge the vaue of the Company's securities; and

V) plaintiff and the other members of the Class purchased PNC stock between the
time the defendants failed to disclose or misrepresented materia facts and the
time the true facts were disclosed, without knowledge of the omitted or
misrepresented facts.

24. Based upon the factors set forth in the preceding paragraph, plaintiff and the other
members of the Class are entitled to the presumption of reliance upon the integrity of the market.

NO STATUTORY SAFE HARBOR

25.  The datutory safe harbor provided for forward-looking statements under certain
circumstances does not gpply to any of the fase statements pleaded in this Complaint because none of
the statements pleaded herein are “forward-looking” statements nor were they identified as "forward-
looking statements’ when made. Nor did meaningful cautionary statements identifying important factors
that could cause actud resultsto differ materidly from thosein any purportedly forward looking

gatements. In the dternative, to the extent that the statutory safe harbor does apply to any statements



pleaded herein which are deemed to be forward-looking, defendants are liable for those false forward-
looking statements because at the time each of those statements was made the spesker actudly knew
those forward-looking statement were false and/or the statement was authorized and/or gpproved by an
executive officer of PNC who actudly knew that the statements were false when made.

SUBSTANTIVE ALLEGATIONS

26. On July 19, 2001, PNC issued a press release announcing its financid results for the
second quarter of fiscal year 2001. Specificdly, the Company announced
second quarter 2001 earnings of $295,000,000 or $1.00 per diluted share. The pressrelease aso
dtated that taxable-equivaent net interest income for the second quarter of 2001 was $569 million, an
increase of $19 million or 3% from the same period in 2000. In addition, Defendant Rohr was quoted
in the release as saying “[ T]he diversity of PNC’s businesses helped to mitigate the impact of awesker
€conomic environment.”

27.  The Company filed aForm 10-Q with the SEC on August 14, 2001
which included the finalized financid results for the second quarter of fiscd year 2001. The Form 10-Q
was sgned by Defendant Haunschild and confirmed the results issued in the July pressrelease.
Additiondly, E&Y and PNC dgned off on thisfiling as being accurate and assured the investing public
that PNC' s reported financid results were presented in conformity with Generaly Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAFP’).

28.  On October 18, 2001, PNC issued a press release announcing its results
for the third quarter of 2001, ended September 30, 2001. In that release, the Company reported net
earnings of $298,000,000 or $1.02 per diluted share. The press release dso stated that taxable-

equivalent net interest income for the second quarter of 2001 was $564 million, an increase of $30



million or 6% from the same period in 2000. Furthermore, Defendant Rohr was quoted in the release
as saying “[O]ur diverse mix of businesses, incuding solid performance from our Regiond Community
Bank, BlackRock and PFPC, drove earnings that were within the range of anadysts estimates while we
added to loan loss reserves and reduced nonper for ming assets.” [Emphasis added].

29. Subsequently, PNC filed its Form 10-Q with the SEC for the third quarter of fiscd year
2001 (period ended September 30, 2001), signed by Defendant Haunschild which confirmed the
previoudy announced financid results from the October pressreease. In addition, E&Y and PNC
sgned off on thisfiling as being accurate and assured the investing public that PNC' s reported financid
results were presented in conformity with Generaly Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP’).

30. On January 17, 2002 the Company issued a press release announcing PNC's
fourth quarter fisca year 2001 and full year 2001 financid results. The Company reported a net 10ss of
$326 million or $1.15 per diluted share. The release explained that the loss was due to PNC's earlier
announced strategy to accelerate and reposition the Company’ s banking and venture capita business.
The release further explained that when these charges were excluded earnings for the fourth quarter of
2001 were $289 million or $1.01 per diluted share. Asfor PNC'sfull year 2001 results the release
noted earnings of $567 million or $1.91 per diluted share. Defendant Rohr was again quoted spesking
about the increasing strength of the Company’ s position and his belief that PNC would “[d]eliver 2002
earnings in line with the current median First Call estimate of $4.60 per diluted share.”

31l.  The daements referenced above in paragraphs 24-28 were each materidly fase
and mideading when made and omitted materid facts in that, as further described herein, the defendants
knew, or recklesdy disregarded, that the Company was engaged in improper and/or suspect

accounting practices which affected the accuracy of itsfinancia results and that, contrary to the



gatements in documents filed with the SEC during the Class Period, PNC' sfinancid statements issued
during the Class Period were not prepared in accordance with GAAP.

32. Indeed, on January 29, 2000, the Company announced that
the Federal Reserve Board had informed PNC about accounting inaccuraciesin itsfinancid statements
for the second, third, and fourth quarters of fiscd year 2001. Specificaly, PNC failed to consolidate
preferred interests in three subsidiaries it had established with AIG. In response to the Federa Reserve
Board' s recommendations that PNC adjust its accounting methods pertaining to certain aspects of its
financid results, the Company announced that it would restate its earnings for the second and third
quarters of fisca year 2001 and revise its fourth quarter for the same year resulting in year-end earnings
being reduced $155 million to approximately $412 million, or $1.38 a share. The Company dso
reveaed that these accounting adjustments would cause PNC's nonperforming assets to rise by $125
million to $393 million. Findly, PNC stated that the Federd Reserve Board and SEC were making
inquiries about PNC' s transactions and that the Company would cooperate with the investigations.

33. On January 29, 2002 the market responded to the Company’ s latest announcement
regarding areduction in year-end earnings which had been released just days before. The price of
PNC stock closed on January 29, 2002 down $5.79 or nearly 10% at $56.08 in extremely heavy
trading volume of 6,305,100 shares.

34. In addition, it was recently reveded in aWall Street Journa article dated January 31,

2002 that while acting as auditor and a consultant for PNC, E& Y was aso acting as a consultant for
AlG. Infact, asPNC' sauditor, E&Y gpproved PNC' s transactions with AlIG discussed herein while
a the same time acting as an “accounting adviser” to AIG. E&Y drew up the financid gructure for the

subgdiaries in question and gpproved them for implementation by AIG. E&Y would dso issue aletter
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that helped AlG pitch its product to banks.

35.  TheWwall Street Journa article further reported that E& Y provided AIG with an SAS

50 letter for the establishment of the subsidiarieswith PNC. Such aletter isaforma statement attesting
that atransaction had been reviewed and approve of by senior E&Y officids.

36. PNC stock had been open, well-devel oped and efficient at dl times during the Class
Period. Asaresult of the defendants materidly fase and mideading statements and faluresto
disclose st forth herein, the Company’ s stock traded at artificialy inflated prices during the Class
Period.

37.  Thefinancid statements and related press rel eases by the Company
identified above contained statements that were materidly fase and mideading when made. Despite
PNC and E& Y’ s representations to the contrary, the Company’s Class Period financial statements did
not comply with GAAP, causng PNC to restate and/or revise financia results for the second, third, and
fourth quarters of fisca year 2001, the Federd Reserve Board to recommend changesin the
Company’ s accounting practices, and investigations by the Federd Reserve Board and Securities
Exchange Commisson.

38.  The SEC requires that publicly-traded companies present their financia satementsin
accordance with GAAP. 17 CF.R. § 210.4-01(a)(1). Financia statements filed with the SEC which
are not prepared in accordance with GAAP "will be presumed to be mideading or inaccurate, despite
footnote or other disclosures, unless the Commission has otherwise provided.” 17 C.F.R. § 210.4-
01(8)(1).

39.  Thedefendants violated the following GAARP principles, anong others

a the principle that a conservative approach be taken providing early

11



recognition of unfavorable events and minimizing the
amount of income reported. (See Statement No. 4 of
the Accounting Principles Board ("APB Nos") at 4 1
28, 35, 171);

b. the principle that the financid information presented should be complete. (See
APB No. 4, 11 28, 35, 88, 171);

C. the principle of fair presentation ("presents fairly”). (See APB
No. 4, 91 109, 138, 189);

d. the principle of adequacy and fairness of disclosure. (See APB
No. 4, 1181, 106, 189, 199);

e the principleof maeridity concerning information that issignificant
enough to affect evaluations or decisons. (See APB No. 4, 11
25, 128);

f. the principle that the substance of transactions rather than form
should be reflected. (See APB No. 4, 1125, 35, 127),

s} the principle that informed judgment based on background and
knowledge should be applied. (See APB No. 4, 11 25, 35, 124,
173, 174);

h. the principle that items included in the financid statements be
religbly corroborated by outside evidence (verifiability). See
APB No. 4, 11 23, 35, 90);

I. the principle that the financia statements contain and disclose
relevant, understandable, and timely information for the economic
decisions of the user. (See APB No. 4, 1123, 88, 89, 92);

B the principle that the financid statements providerelidblefinancia
information about the enterprise for the economic decisons of the
user. (See APB No. 4, 1177, 78, 107, 108); and

K. the principle that accounts receivable must be reported in the
financid statements at net redizable value (See, .9, ARB-43, Chapter 3A;
Financid Accounting Standard No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies.)

PNC isredtating its financid statements for the second and third quarters of
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fiscd year 2001 and revising its fourth quarter 2001 financid results announced in its January 17, 2002
pressrelease. These restatements and announced revison conditute defendants own admission that the
financid satements origindly issued during the Class Period were fase in amaterid way.

41. During the Class Period, PNC and E&Y materialy mided the investing public thereby
inflating the price of PNC's securities by publicly issuing fase and mideading statements and omitting to
disclose materid facts necessary to make PNC's statements, as set forth herein not false and mideading.
Throughout the Class Period, each defendant knew or recklessy disregarded that PNC' s true earnings
were not as represented in those reports, releases and statements, because in order to generate the
gppearance of prospering performance and favorable financid results, defendantshad to, and did, violate
GAAP. Asaresult of these fase and mideading statements, the Company’s shares were traded at
atificidly inflated prices, causng damage to plantiff and the other members of the Class when the
Company reveded that the Company’ sprevioudy filed financid statementswerethe subject of aninternd
investigation.

SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS

42.  The facts dleged herein, compd a strong inference that the Individua Defendants made
materid fa seand mideading Satementsto theinvesting public with scienter in that the Individua Defendants
knew that the public satementsissued or disseminated in the name of the Company were materidly fase
and mideading; knew or recklessly disregarded that such statements would be issued or disseminated to
the investing public; and knowingly and substantidly participated or acquiesced in the issuance or
dissemination of such statements as primary violators of the federad securities laws. In addition, the
Individual Defendants caused PNC to engage in irregular accounting practices, and in turn caused the

Company to report artificidly inflated financid results. Moreover, Defendant E& Y, which was collecting
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millions of dollarsin feesto act asan auditor and consultant for PNC and asa consultant to Al G, knowingly
approved the transaction between the two companies as described herein in order for both companiesto
gopear more profitable and financidly stable and thus dlow E& Y to continue its work for two very large
clients.

COUNT 1

(VIOLATION OF SECTION 10(b) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT AND
RULE 10b-5 BROUGHT AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTYS)

43. Pantiff repeats and redleges each and every dlegation contained in the foregoing
paragraphs asif fully set forth herein.

44, During the Class Period, defendants directly engaged in a common plan, scheme, and
unlawful course of conduct, pursuant to which it knowingly or recklesdy engaged in acts, transactions,
practices, and courses of business which operated as a fraud and deceit upon plaintiff and the other
members of the Class, and made various deceptive and untrue statements of materid facts and omitted to
date materid factsin order to make the satements made, in light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not mideading to plaintiff and the other members of the Class. The purpose and effect of the
scheme, plan, and unlawful course of conduct was, among other things, to deceive the investing public,
induding plaintiff and the other members of the Class, and to induce plaintiff and the other members of the
Class to purchase PNC common stock during the Class Period at artificialy inflated prices.

45, DuringtheClassPeriod, thedefendants, pursuant to said scheme, plan, and unlawful course
of conduct, knowingly and/or recklesdy issued, caused to be issued, participated in the issuance of, the
preparation and/or issuance of deceptive and materialy fase and mideading statements to the investing

public as particularized above.
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46.  Asaresult of the defendants dissemination of and/or failure to correct the false and
mideading statements set forth above, the market price of PNC common stock was artificidly inflated
during the Class Period. Unaware of the fase and mideading nature of the statements described above
and the deceptive and mani pul ative devices and contrivances employed by the defendants, plaintiff and the
other members of the Classrelied, to their detriment, on the integrity of the market price of the stock in
purchasang PNC common stock. Had plaintiff and the other members of the Class known the truth, they
would not have purchased PNC shares or would not have purchased them at the inflated prices that they
did.

47. Fantiff and the other members of the Class have suffered damages as a result of the
wrongs herein dleged in an amount to be proved at trid.

48. By reason the foregoing, the defendants have violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange
Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder and are liable to plaintiff and the other members of the Class
for damages which they suffered in connection with their purchases of PNC stock during the Class Period.

COUNT 11

(VIOLATION OF SECTION 20(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT
BROUGHT AGAINST THE INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANTS)

49, Paintiff repeats and redlleges each and every dlegation contained in each of the
foregoing paragraphs asif st forth fully herein.

50.  Thelndividua Defendants acted as controlling persons of the Company within the
meaning of section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as dleged herein. By virtue of their high-level positions,
and active participation in and/or awareness of the Company’ s day-to-day operations, each Individua

Defendant had the power to influence and control and did influence and control, directly or indirectly,
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the decison-making of the Company, including the content and dissemination of the various Statements
and SEC filings that plaintiff aleges are fase and mideading. The Individuad Defendants were provided
with, or had unlimited access to copies of the Company's reports, press releases, public filings and
other statements aleged herein to be mideading prior to and/or shortly after these tatements were
issued and had the ability to prevent the issuance of the statements or cause the statementsto be
corrected.

51. In particular, the Individud Defendants had direct and supervisory involvement in the
day-to-day operations of the Company and, therefore, are presumed to have had the power to control
or influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violaions as dleged herein, and
exercised the same.

52. By virtue of their positions as contralling persons, the Individua Defendants are ligble
pursuant to section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. Asadirect and proximeate result of the wrongful
conduct, plaintiff and the other members of the Class suffered damages in connection with their
purchases of the Company's securities during the Class Period.

WHEREFORE, plaintiff, on his behaf and on behdf of the Class, praysfor judgment as
follows

A. Declaring this action to be a proper class action and certifying plaintiff as class
representative under Rule 23 of the Federd Rules of Civil Procedure;

B. Awarding monetary damages againg dl of the defendants, jointly and severdly,
in favor of plaintiff and the other members of the Class for dl losses and damages suffered as aresult of
the wrongdoings aleged herein, including punitive damages where appropriate, together with interest

thereon;
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C. Awarding plaintiff the fees and expensesincurred in this action, including
reasonable dlowance of fees for plaintiff's attorneys and experts,

D. Granting plaintiff and the other members of the Class such other and further
relief asthe Court may deem just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Haintiff hereby demands atrid by jury.
Dated: February 1, 2002

LAW OFFICES OF ALFRED G. YATESJR.
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429 Forbes Avenue
Pittsburgh, PA 15219-1649
(412) 391-5164
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